RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE INTERCAP PROGRAM

CERTIFICATE OF MINUTES RELATING TO RESOLUTION NO. 2021-39

Kind, date, time and place of meeting: A public meeting held on the 3th at 1 o'clock a.m. in _______, Montana.

Members present: Andy Hunthowsen, Jim Mclarmich, Tom Rolfe

Members absent: MA

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-39

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE BOARD OF INVESTMENTS OF THE STATE OF MONTANA ANNUAL ADJUSTABLE RATE TENDER OPTION MUNICIPAL FINANCE CONSOLIDATION ACT BONDS (INTERCAP REVOLVING PROGRAM), APPROVING THE FORM AND TERMS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS RELATED THERETO

I, the undersigned, being the fully qualified and acting recording officer of the public body issuing the obligations referred to in the title of this certificate, certify that the documents attached hereto, as described above, have been carefully compared with the original records of the public body in my legal custody, from which they have been transcribed; that the documents are a correct and complete transcript of the minutes of a meeting of the governing body at the meeting, insofar as they relate to the obligations; and that the meeting was duly held by the governing body at the time and place and was attended throughout by the members indicated above, pursuant to call and notice of such meeting given as required by law.

24528

WITNESS my hand officially as such recording officer this 360

2021.

3379715 B: M59 P: 3488 COUNTY 06/03/2021 02:40 PM Pages: 1 of 58 Fees: 0.00

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-39

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE BOARD OF INVESTMENTS OF THE STATE OF MONTANA ANNUAL ADJUSTABLE RATE TENDER OPTION MUNICIPAL FINANCE CONSOLIDATION ACT BONDS (INTERCAP REVOLVING PROGRAM), APPROVING THE FORM AND TERMS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS RELATED THERETO

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY (the Borrower) AS FOLLOWS: (the Governing Body) OF LEWIS AND

ARTICLE I

DETERMINATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. <u>Definitions</u>. The following terms will have the meanings indicated below for all purposes of this Resolution unless the context clearly requires otherwise. Capitalized terms used in this Resolution and not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Loan Agreement.

Adjusted Interest Rate means the rate of interest on the Bonds determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.03 of the Indenture.

Authorized Representative shall mean the officers of the Borrower designated and duly empowered by the Governing Body and set forth in the application.

Board shall mean the Board of Investments of the State of Montana, a public body corporate organized and existing under the laws of the State and its successors and assigns.

Board Act shall mean Section 2-15-1808, Title 17, Chapter 5, Part 16, MCA, as amended.

Bonds shall mean the Bonds issued by the Board pursuant to the Indenture to finance the Program.

Borrower shall mean the Borrower above named.

Indenture shall mean that certain Indenture of Trust dated March 1, 1991 by and between the Board and the Trustee pursuant to which the Bonds are to be issued and all supplemental indentures thereto.

<u>Loan</u> means the loan of money by the Board to the Borrower under the terms of the Loan Agreement pursuant to the Act and the Borrower Act and evidenced by the Note.

<u>Loan Agreement</u> means the Loan Agreement between the Borrower and the Board, including any amendment thereof or supplement thereto entered into in accordance with the provisions thereof and hereof.

<u>Loan Agreement Resolution</u> means this Resolution or such other form of resolution that the Board may approve and all amendments and supplements thereto.

Loan Date means the date of closing a Loan.

Loan Rate means the rate of interest on the Loan which is initially 1.65% per annum through February 15, 2022 and thereafter a rate equal to the Adjusted Interest Rate on the Bonds and up to 1.50% per annum as necessary to pay Program Expenses.

Note means the promissory note to be executed by the Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement, in accordance with the provisions hereof and thereof, in substantially the form set forth in the Promissory Note, or in such form that may be approved by the Board.

<u>Program</u> shall mean the INTERCAP Program of the Board pursuant to which the Board will issue and sell Bonds and use the proceeds to make loans to participating Eligible Government Units.

<u>Project</u> shall mean those items of equipment, personal or real property improvements to be acquired, installed, financed or refinanced under the Program as set forth in the Description of the Project/Summary of Draws.

<u>Trustee</u> shall mean U.S. Bank National Association (formerly known as First Trust Company of Montana National Association) and its successors.

Section 1.02. <u>Authority</u>. The Borrower is authorized to undertake the Project and is further authorized by the Borrower Act to enter into the Loan Agreement for the purpose of obtaining a loan to finance or refinance the acquisition and installation costs of the Project.

Section 1.03. Execution of Agreement and Delivery of Note. Pursuant to the Indenture and the Board Act, the Board has issued and sold the Bonds and deposited a part of proceeds thereof in the Loan Fund held by the Trustee. The Board has, pursuant to the Term Sheet, agreed to make a Loan to the Borrower in the principal amount of \$650,000.00 and upon the further terms and conditions set forth herein, and as set forth in the Term Sheet and the Loan Agreement.

ARTICLE II

THE LOAN AGREEMENT

Section 2.01. <u>Terms.</u> (a) The Loan Agreement shall be dated as of the Loan Date, in the principal amount of \$650,000.00 and shall constitute a valid and legally binding obligation of the Borrower. The obligation to repay the Loan shall be evidenced by a Promissory Note. The Loan shall bear interest at the initial rate of 1.65% per annum through February 15, 2022 and thereafter at the Adjusted Interest Rate, plus up to 1.50% per annum as necessary to pay the cost of administering the Program (the Program Expenses). All payments may be made by check or wire transfer to the Trustee at its principal corporate trust office.

- (b) The Loan Repayment Dates shall be February 15 and August 15 of each year.
- (c) The principal amount of the Loan may be prepaid in whole or in part provided that the Borrower has given written notice of its intention to prepay the Loan in whole or in part to the Board no later than 30 days prior to the designated prepayment date.
- (d) The Prepayment Amount shall be equal to the principal amount of the Loan outstanding, plus accrued interest thereon to the date of prepayment.
- (e) Within fifteen days following an Adjustment Date, the Trustee shall calculate the respective amounts of principal and interest payable by each Borrower on and with respect to its Loan Agreement and Note for the subsequent August 15 and February 15 payments, and prepare and mail by first class mail a statement therefor to the Borrower.

Section 2.02. <u>Use and Disbursement of the Proceeds</u>. The proceeds of the Loan will be expended solely for the purposes set forth in the Description of the Project/Summary of Draws. The proceeds from the sale of the Note to the Board shall remain in the Borrower's Account pending disbursement at the request of the Borrower to pay the budgeted expenditures in anticipation of which the Note was issued. Requests for disbursement of the Loan shall be made to the Board. Prior to the closing of the Loan and the first disbursement, the Borrower shall have delivered to the Trustee a certified copy of this Resolution, the executed Loan Agreement and Note in a form satisfactory to the Borrower's Counsel and the Board's Bond Counsel and such other certificates, documents and opinions as set forth in the Loan Agreement or as the Board or Trustee may require. The Borrower will pay the loan proceeds to a third party within five business days after the date they are advanced (except for proceeds to reimburse the Borrower for previously paid expenditures, which are deemed allocated on the date advanced).

Section 2.03. Payment and Security for the Note. In consideration of the making of the Loan to the Borrower by the Board, the provisions of this Resolution shall be a part of the Agreement of the Borrower with the Board. The provisions, covenants and Agreements herein set forth to be performed by or on behalf of the Borrower shall be for the benefit of the Board. The Loan Agreement and Note shall constitute a valid and legally binding obligation of the Borrower and the principal of and interest on the Loan shall be payable from the general fund of the Borrower, and any other money and funds of the Borrower otherwise legally available therefor. The Borrower shall enforce its rights to receive and collect all such taxes and revenues to insure the prompt payment of the Borrower obligations hereunder.

Section 2.04. Representation Regarding the Property Tax Limitation Act. The Borrower recognizes and acknowledges that the amount of taxes it may levy is limited by the state pursuant to Section 15-10-402, et. seq. (the Property Tax Limitation Act). The Borrower is familiar with the Property Tax Limitation Act and acknowledges that the obligation to repay the Loan under the Agreement and Note are not exceptions to the provisions of the Property Tax Limitation Act. The Borrower represents and covenants that the payment of principal of and interest on the Loan can and will be made from revenues available to the Borrower in the years as they become due, notwithstanding the provisions of the Property Tax Limitation Act.

Section 2.05. <u>Levy and Appropriate Funds to Repay Loan</u>. The Borrower agrees that in order to meet its obligation to repay the Loan and all other payments hereunder that it will budget, levy taxes for and appropriate in each fiscal year during the term of the Loan an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest hereon within the limitations of the Property Tax Limitation Act, as may be amended, and will reduce other expenditures if necessary to make the payments hereunder when due.

ARTICLE III

CERTIFICATIONS, EXECUTION AND DELIVERY

Section 3.01. <u>Authentication of Transcript</u>. The Authorized Representatives are authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to the Board and to attorneys approving the validity of the Bonds, certified copies of this Resolution and all other resolutions and actions of the Borrower and of said officers relating to the Loan Agreement, the Note, and certificates as to all other proceedings and records of the Borrower which are reasonably required to evidence the validity and marketability of the Note. All such certified copies and certificates shall be deemed the representations and recitals of the Borrower as to the correctness of the statements contained therein.

Section 3.02. <u>Legal Opinion</u>. The attorney to the Borrower is hereby authorized and directed to deliver to the Board at the time of Closing of the Loan his or her opinion regarding the Loan, the Loan Agreement, the Note and this Resolution in substantially the form of the opinion set forth in the Attorney's Opinion.

Section 3.03. <u>Execution</u>. The Loan Agreement, Note, and any other document required to close the Loan shall be executed in the name of the Borrower and shall be executed on behalf of the Borrower by the signatures of the Authorized Representatives of the Borrower.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Lewis Gad clark lainly food of lamissiones day

The , 2021.

By Commissioner

Attest:

By May Kerry
Its_ Clerk of the Board



LOAN AGREEMENT

between

BOARD OF INVESTMENTS OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

as Lender

and

LEWIS AND CLARK COUNTY COUNTY

as Borrower

DATE OF AGREEMENT:

June 18, 2021

LOAN AMOUNT:

SIX HUNRED FIFTY THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS

(\$650,000.00)

ADDRESS OF BORROWER:

Lewis and Clark County

316 North Park Helena, MT 59623

CONTACT PERSON OF BORROWER:

NAME

Nancy Everson Finance Director

TITLE TELEPHONE

(406) 447-8309

E-MAIL

neverson@lccountymt.gov

ALTERNATE CONTACT PERSON

NAME

Amy Reeves

TITLE

Treasurer/Clerk and Recorder

TELEPHONE

(406) 447-8326

E-MAIL

areeves@lccountymt.gov

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION.	
SECTION 1.01. DEFINITIONS	5
ARTICLE II. REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES OF BORROWER.	
SECTION 2.01. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.	
SECTION 2.02. PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF BORROWER.	7
ARTICLE III. LOAN TO BORROWER.	7
ARTICLE IV. LOAN PROVISIONS.	8
SECTION 4.01. COMMENCEMENT OF LOAN AGREEMENT. SECTION 4.02. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. SECTION 4.03. TERM OF LOAN AGREEMENT. SECTION 4.04. LOAN CLOSING SUBMISSIONS. SECTION 4.05. INITIAL AND SUBSEQUENT DRAWS OF LOAN.	8 8
ARTICLE V. LOAN REPAYMENTS AND NOTE	9
SECTION 5.01. PAYMENT OF LOAN REPAYMENTS	9
ARTICLE VI. TERM.	10
ARTICLE VII. OBLIGATIONS OF BORROWER UNCONDITIONAL	10
SECTION 7.01. OBLIGATIONS OF BORROWER.	10
ARTICLE VIII. FINANCIAL COVENANTS (GENERAL FUND)	10
SECTION 8.01. REPRESENTATION REGARDING THE PROPERTY TAX LIMITATION ACT. SECTION 8.02. LEVY AND APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO REPAY LOAN. SECTION 8.03. REPORTS AND OPINION; INSPECTIONS.	10
ARTICLE IX. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES	11
ARTICLE X. OPTION TO PREPAY LOAN.	11
ARTICLE XI. ASSIGNMENT.	11
SECTION 11.01. ASSIGNMENT BY BOARD OR TRUSTEE. SECTION 11.02. ASSIGNMENT BY BORROWER.	
ARTICLE XII. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES.	11
SECTION 12.01. EVENTS OF DEFAULT DEFINED. SECTION 12.02. NOTICE OF DEFAULT. SECTION 12.03. REMEDIES ON DEFAULT. SECTION 12.04. ATTORNEYS FEES AND OTHER EXPENSES. SECTION 12.05. APPLICATION OF MONEYS. SECTION 12.06. NO REMEDY EXCLUSIVE, WAIVER AND NOTICE.	12 13

ARTICLE XIII. MISCELLANEOUS.	13
SECTION 13.01. NOTICES	
SECTION 13.02. BINDING EFFECT.	
SECTION 13.03. SEVERABILITY.	14
SECTION 13.04. AMENDMENTS, CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS.	14
SECTION 13.05. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS	14
SECTION 13.06. APPLICABLE ACT.	14
SECTION 13.07. CONSENTS AND APPROVALS.	14
SECTION 13.08. INDEMNITY.	14
SECTION 13.09. WAIVER OF PERSONAL LIABILITY.	
SECTION 13.10. CAPTIONS.	

80₁₂ 11

This Loan Agreement (the "Agreement") dated as of June 18, 2021, and entered into between the Board of Investments of the State of Montana (the "Board"), a public body corporate and instrumentality of the state of Montana, and Lewis and Clark County ("the Borrower"), a political subdivision of the State of Montana organized under the laws of the State of Montana;

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-15-1808, Montana Code Annotated and Title 17, Chapter 5, Part 16, Montana Code Annotated (the "Act") and in accordance with the Indenture of Trust, dated as of March 1, 1991, between the Board and U.S. Bank National Association (formerly known as First Trust Company of Montana National Association) (the "Trustee"), has established its INTERCAP Revolving Program pursuant to which the Board will issue, from time to time, its Annual Adjustable Rate Tender Option Municipal Finance Consolidation Act Bonds (INTERCAP Revolving Program) (the "Bonds"), for the purpose of making loans to Eligible Government Units to finance or refinance the acquisition and installation of equipment, personal and real property improvements, to provide temporary financing of projects or for other authorized corporate purposes of an Eligible Government Unit (the "Projects"); and

WHEREAS, the Board has agreed to loan part of the proceeds of an issue of such Bonds to the Borrower in the amount of \$650,000.00, and the Borrower has agreed to borrow such amount from the Board, subject to the terms and conditions of and for the purposes set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower is authorized under the laws of the State of Montana, and has taken all necessary action, to enter into this Agreement for the Project as identified in the Description of the Project/Summary of Disbursements attached hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION.

Section 1.01. Definitions

The following terms will have the meanings indicated below for all purposes of this Agreement unless the context clearly requires otherwise. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Indenture.

"Act" means Section 2-15-1808, Montana Code Annotated and Title 17, Chapter 5, Part 16, Montana Code Annotated as now in effect and as it may from time to time hereafter be amended or supplemented.

"Adjusted Interest Rate" shall mean the interest rate on the Loan determined and established pursuant to the Promissory Note hereto and the Loan Agreement or Bond Resolution.

"Adjustment Date" means the Initial Adjustment Date or a Subsequent Adjustment Date.

"Adjustment Period" means the period beginning on an Adjustment Date and ending on the day before the next succeeding Adjustment Date.

"Amortization Schedule" means the schedule prepared for a loan advance to the Borrower showing the principal amount advanced, the amortization of the principal, and the interest and principal payments due to the Subsequent Interest Adjustment Date.

"<u>Authorized Representative</u>" shall mean the officers of the Borrower designated by the Governing Body and set forth in the Application and signed on behalf of the Borrower by a duly authorized official.

"Board" means the Board of Investments of the State of Montana, a public body corporate organized and existing under the laws of the State and its successors and assigns.

"Bonds" means the Board of Investments of the State of Montana's Annual Adjustable Rate Tender Option Municipal Finance Consolidation Act Bonds (INTERCAP Revolving Program) authorized to be issued for the Program.

"Borrower" means Lewis and Clark County, the Eligible Government Unit, which is borrowing and using the proceeds of the Loan to finance, refinance or be reimbursed for, all or a portion of the Cost of the Total Project.

"Borrower Act" means 7-7-2201, 7-7-2101 & 7-7-2402, the section of Montana Code Annotated that authorizes an Eligible Government Unit to borrow money on terms consistent with the Program.

"Borrower Resolution" means a resolution, duly and validly adopted by a Borrower authorizing the execution and delivery to the Board of an Agreement and Note, in substantially the form provided, or such other form of Resolution that the Board may approve and all amendments and supplements thereto.

"Commencement Date" means June 18, 2021, the date of the Agreement when the term of this Agreement begins and the obligation of the Borrower to make Loan Repayments begins to accrue.

"Counsel" means an attorney or firm of attorneys duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state.

"<u>Default</u>" means an event or condition the occurrence of which would, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice or both, become an Event of Default.

"Eligible Government Unit" shall mean any municipal corporation or political subdivision of the state, including without limitation any city, town, county, school district, or other special taxing district or assessment or service district authorized by law to borrow money or any board, agency, or department of the state, or the board of regents of the Montana university system when authorized by law to borrow money.

"Event of Default" means any occurrence or event described in Article X hereof.

"<u>Fiscal Year</u>" means the fiscal year of the Borrower beginning on July 1 and ending June 30.

"Governing Body" shall mean (i) with respect to a county, the Board of County Commissioners, (ii) with respect to a city, the City Council or Commission, and (iii) with respect to a school district, county water or sewer district, hospital district, rural fire district, or any other special purpose district, the Board of Trustees.

"Indenture" means that certain Indenture of Trust, dated as of March 1, 1991, by and between the Board and the Trustee, as originally executed or as it may from time to time be supplemented, modified or amended in accordance with its terms.

"Initial Adjustment Date" means the first February 16 following the date of the Agreement.

"Initial Interest Rate" means the Loan Rate from the date of the Agreement to the Initial Adjustment Date.

"Loan" means the loan of money by the Board to the Borrower under the terms of this Agreement pursuant to the Act and the Borrower Act, evidenced by the Note.

"Loan Agreement" or "Agreement" means this Agreement, including, the attachments hereto, if any, as originally executed or as they may from time to time be supplemented, modified or amended in accordance with the terms hereof and of the Indenture.

"Loan Date" means the date of closing a Loan.

"<u>Loan Rate</u>" means the rate of interest on the Loan as provided for in Section 5.01 of this Agreement.

"Loan Repayment Date" means February 15th and August 15th or, if any such day is not a Business Day, the next Business Day thereafter, during the term of the Loan.

"<u>Loan Repayments</u>" means the payments payable by the Borrower pursuant to Article V of this Agreement.

"Loan Term" means the term provided for in Article VI of this Agreement.

"<u>Maximum Interest Rate</u>" means the maximum rate of interest on the Bonds which shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) per annum.

"Note" means the promissory note executed and delivered by the Borrower attached hereto and made a part hereof.

"Program" means the Board's INTERCAP Program established under the Act and pursuant to which the Board finances Projects for Eligible Government Units.

"Program Expenses" means the expenses of the Program, including (without limitation) the fees and expenses of the Trustee and such other fees and expenses of the Program or of the Board relating thereto as shall be approved by the Board.

"Project" means those items of equipment, personal or real property improvements to be acquired, installed, financed or refinanced under the Program and set forth in the Description of the Project/Summary of Disbursements attached hereto.

"<u>Project Costs</u>" shall mean the portion of the costs of the Total Project to be financed by the INTERCAP Loan. The Project Costs may not exceed the Loan Amount as set forth on the cover hereof.

"Series Supplemental Indenture of Trust" means a Supplemental Indenture of Trust authorizing the issuance of an additional series of bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.

"State" means the state of Montana.

"Subsequent Interest Adjustment Date or Subsequent Adjustment Date" means February 16 in the years the Loan remains outstanding.

"<u>Term Sheet</u>" shall mean the document containing the terms and conditions issued by the Board to the Borrower that must be satisfied prior to entering into a Loan Agreement.

"<u>Term Sheet Issuance Date</u>" means the date the Board executes its Term Sheet under the Board's Program.

"<u>Total Project</u>" shall mean the project as described in Section 14 of the Term Sheet and/or Section 2 of the application, of which some or all is to be financed by the INTERCAP Loan.

"<u>Total Project Costs</u>" shall mean the entire cost of acquiring, completing or constructing the project as further described in Section 14 of the Terms & Conditions Sheet and/or Section 2 of the application.

"<u>Trustee</u>" means the U.S. Bank National Association (formerly known as First Trust Company of Montana National Association), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the United States, or its successor as trustee as provided in the Indenture.

Section 1.02. Rules of Interpretation.

For all purposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) "This Agreement" means this instrument as originally executed and as it may from time to time be modified or amended.
- (b) All references in this instrument to designated "Articles", "Sections" and other subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this instrument as originally executed. The words "herein", "hereof", "hereunder", and "herewith" and other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or other subdivision.
- (c) The terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in this Article and include the plural as well as the singular.
- (d) All accounting terms not otherwise defined herein have the meanings assigned to them in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
- (e) The terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement shall have the meanings therein prescribed for them.
- (f) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter gender.
- (g) The headings or captions used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not define or limit or describe any of the provisions hereof or the scope or intent hereof.
 - (h) This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 1.03. Attachments

The following are attachments and a part of this Agreement:

Description of the Project/Summary of Disbursements.

Borrower's Draw Certificate.

Promissory Note.

Opinion of Borrower's Counsel.

Certificate of Appropriation (if applicable).

ARTICLE II. REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES OF BORROWER.

Section 2.01. Representations and Warranties.

Borrower represents and warrants for the benefit of the Board, the Trustee and the Bondholders as follows:

- (a) Organization and Authority. The Borrower:
 - (1) is a political subdivision of the State of Montana; and
- (2) has complied with all public bidding and other State and Federal laws applicable to this Agreement and the acquisition or installation of the Project.
- (b) <u>Full Disclosure</u>. There is no fact that the Borrower has not disclosed to the Board or its agents in writing that materially adversely affects or (so far as the Borrower can now foresee), except for pending or proposed legislation or regulations that are a matter of public information affecting the ability of the Borrower to levy property taxes, collect fees and charges for services provided by the Borrower or otherwise receive revenues, that will materially adversely affect the properties, activities, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Borrower or the ability of the Borrower to make all repayments and otherwise perform its obligations under this Agreement, and the Note.
- (c) <u>Pending Litigation</u>. There are no proceedings pending, or to the knowledge of the Borrower threatened against or affecting the Borrower in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal that, if adversely determined, would materially adversely affect the properties, activities, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Borrower, or the ability of the Borrower to make all Loan Repayments and otherwise perform its obligations under this Agreement, and the Note, and that have not been disclosed in writing to the Board.
- (d) <u>Borrowing Legal and Authorized</u>. The transaction provided for in this Agreement, and the Note:
 - (1) are within the powers of the Borrower and have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Borrower, including the adoption of a resolution substantially in the form provided hereto with such modification as may be provided by the Board; and
 - (2) will not result in any breach of any of the terms, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance upon any property or assets of the Borrower pursuant to any indenture, loan agreement or other instrument (other than this Agreement and, the Note) to which the Borrower is a party or by which the Borrower may be bound, nor will such action result in any violation of the provisions of any state laws, or ordinances or resolutions of the Borrower; and
 - (3) the amount of the Loan represented hereby has been added to the amount of all other outstanding debt of the Borrower and together therewith does not result in the Borrower exceeding its statutory debt limitation.
- (e) No Violation. No event has occurred and no condition exists that, upon execution of this Agreement, and the Note or receipt of the Loan, would constitute a Default or an Event of Default. The Borrower is not in violation in any material respect, and has not received notice of

any claimed violation, of any term of any agreement, statute, ordinance, resolution, bylaw or other instrument to which it is a party or by which it or its property may be bound.

- (f) <u>Use of Proceeds</u>. The Borrower will apply the proceeds of the Loan solely to finance the Project Costs described in the Description of the Project/Summary of Disbursements attached hereto. In addition, the Borrower will pay the loan proceeds to a third party within five business days after the date they are advanced (except for proceeds to reimburse the Borrower for previously paid expenditures, which are deemed allocated on the date advanced). Investment of proceeds by the Borrowers within the five business day period of disbursement to a third party (except for proceeds to reimburse the Borrower for previously paid expenditures) should be in Non-AMT Obligations as that term is defined in the Board's tax certificates.
- (g) <u>Completion of the Total Project; Payment of Total Project Costs.</u> The Borrower shall proceed diligently to complete the Total Project and to obtain the necessary funds to pay the Total Project Costs thereof. The Borrower shall pay any amount required for the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Total Project in excess of the Loan Amount as set forth on the cover hereof.

Section 2.02. Particular Covenants of Borrower.

- (a) <u>Compliance with Statutory Requirements, Competitive Bidding, Montana Labor Laws, Environmental Review, and Other Legal Requirements.</u> The Borrower has complied with all statutory requirements, including competitive bidding and labor requirements and environmental review, applicable to the acquisition and construction of the Project.
- (b) <u>Maintenance and Use of Project</u>. The Borrower shall maintain the Project in good condition, make all necessary renewals, replacements, additions, betterments and improvements thereto and maintain insurance with respect to the Project, its other properties and its operations in such amounts and against such risks as are customary for governmental entities such as the Borrower.
- (c) <u>Financial Reports and Audits</u>. The Borrower shall comply with the provisions of Title 2, Chapter 7, Part 5 Montana Code Annotated.
- (d) <u>Liens</u>. The Borrower shall not create, incur or suffer to exist any lien, charge or encumbrance on the property constituting the Project prior to the security interest granted hereunder other than (i) any security interest or lien pursuant to a loan agreement, mortgage, deed of trust, indenture or similar financing agreement of the Borrower in force and effect as of the date of this Agreement which creates a security interest or lien in after-acquired property of the Borrower and which is approved in writing by the Board, (ii), any security interest, mortgage or deed of trust permitted in writing by the Trustee, or (iii) any security interest or lien imposed or arising by statute or operation of law.
- (e) <u>Expenses</u>. The Borrower will, at the request of the Board, pay all expenses relating to the Loan, the Note and this Agreement.

ARTICLE III. LOAN TO BORROWER.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Board hereby agrees to loan and advance to the Borrower, and the Borrower agrees to borrow and accept from the Board, the Loan in the principal amount not to exceed \$650,000.00.

ARTICLE IV. LOAN PROVISIONS.

Section 4.01. Commencement of Loan Agreement

This Agreement shall commence on the date hereof unless otherwise provided in this Agreement.

Section 4.02. Termination of Agreement.

This Agreement will terminate upon payment in full of all amounts due under this Agreement and upon the full and complete performance and payment of all of the Borrower's other obligations hereunder. Until such termination, all terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 4.03. Term of Loan Agreement.

This Agreement shall be valid for the entire loan amount approved for one year from the Term Sheet Issuance Date. Beginning one year after the Term Sheet Issuance Date, the Board may refuse to make a loan advance if the Board determines that there has been a material adverse change in the circumstances of the Borrower.

Section 4.04. Loan Closing Submissions.

Concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Borrower is providing to the Board and the Trustee, the following documents (except that the Board may waive any of such documents):

- (a) A certified resolution of the Borrower in form and substance substantially identical to that provided hereto; provided, however, that the Board may permit variances in such certified resolution from the form or substance of such resolution if, in the good faith judgment of the Board, such variance is not to the material detriment of the interests of the Program, the Bondholders and such certified resolutions are acceptable to the Trustee;
- (b) An opinion of the Borrower's counsel in form and substance substantially identical to the Attorney's Opinion hereto; provided, however, that the Board may permit variances in such opinion from the form or substance of such Attorney's Opinion if, in the good faith judgment of the Board, such variance is not to the material detriment of the interests of the Program, the Bondholders and such opinion is acceptable to the Trustee;
- (c) A bill, or bills of sale, construction contract or contracts, invoice or invoices, purchase order or purchase orders or other evidence satisfactory to the Board that the Project has been purchased, ordered, constructed or installed by the Borrower or that any construction has been substantially completed and that payment therefor is due and owing or, if the Borrower is to be reimbursed, that payment has been made; and for any debt being refinanced, the canceled note or other financing document or other evidence satisfactory to the Board of such refinancing;
 - (d) Such other closing documents and certificates as the Board may reasonably request.

Section 4.05. Initial and Subsequent Draws of Loan.

For the initial draw of the Loan, the Borrower shall deliver to the Board an executed copy of the Agreement, complete with all attachments as listed in Section 4.04 including the Note and the Agreement Resolution and other documents the Board requires.

For subsequent draws, if applicable, the Borrower shall deliver to the Board, an executed copy of a Disbursement Request and any other documents the Board requires.

ARTICLE V. LOAN REPAYMENTS AND NOTE.

Section 5.01. Payment of Loan Repayments

(a) The Loan Repayment Dates shall be on February 15 and August 15 of each year with the first Loan Repayment Date determined as follows:

Date of Draw	First Loan Repayment Date	Payment Consisting of:
February 15 through April 17	August 15	Principal and Interest
April 18 through June 16	August 15	Interest only
June 17 through August 14	February 15	Principal and interest from date of draw
August 15 through October 18	February 15	Principal and Interest
October 19 through December 17	February 15	Interest only
December 18 through February 14	August 15	Principal and Interest from date of draw

- (b) Borrower hereby agrees to make Loan Repayments to the Trustee on each Loan Repayment Date to be calculated by the Trustee and consisting of the sum of the following items:
 - (i) Principal in an amount based upon the initial Amortization Schedule, the Amortization Schedule being initially determined utilizing the Initial Interest Rate. Each advance of the principal of the Loan as shown on the Amortization Schedule shall be repaid in semiannual installments on each Loan Repayment Date commencing on the first Loan Repayment Date following the date thereof and ending on the final maturity date set forth on the Amortization Schedule. Principal payments will not be adjusted but the interest payment will be adjusted as provided in Section 5.01 hereof.
 - (ii) Interest for each Adjustment Period at the Loan Rate.
- (c) The Loan Rate shall equal the interest rate on the Board's bonds, as determined pursuant to Section 3.03 of the Indenture, plus up to 1.50% per annum as is necessary to pay the Borrower's share of Program Expenses as determined by the Board. The interest rate on the Bonds shall not exceed 15% per annum.
- (d) Within thirty days of the Adjustment Date the Trustee shall calculate the new interest component of the Loan Repayments and shall send a revised Amortization Schedule to the Borrower showing the amount of the Borrower's semiannual Loan Repayments.
- (e) Loan Repayments may be made by check, wire transfer, or Automatic Clearing House (ACH) of funds to the Trustee.

Section 5.02. Delinquent Loan Payments.

From and after any Loan Repayment Date, until repaid, the Loan shall bear interest at a rate equal to two percent on the yield (coupon equivalent) as of the Loan Repayment Date, on United States of America Treasury Bills of a duration as close as possible to the term over which the Loan Repayment is delinquent.

Section 5.03. The Note.

On the date of this Agreement, the Borrower shall execute the attached Note. The obligations of the Borrower under the Note shall be deemed to be amounts payable under Section 5.01. Each payment made to the Trustee pursuant to the Note shall be deemed to be a credit against the corresponding obligation of the Borrower under Section 5.01 and any such payment made to the Trustee shall fulfill the Borrower's obligation to pay such amount hereunder and under the Note.

ARTICLE VI. TERM.

The term of the Loan will be a maximum of ten (10) years and the specific term for each loan draw will be set forth in the Borrower's Draw Certificate.

ARTICLE VII. OBLIGATIONS OF BORROWER UNCONDITIONAL

Section 7.01. Obligations of Borrower.

The obligations of the Borrower to make the payments required hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional without any defense or right of set off, counterclaim or recoupment by reason of any default by the Board under the Loan Agreement or under any other indebtedness or liability at any time owing to the Borrower by the Board or for any other reason.

ARTICLE VIII. FINANCIAL COVENANTS (GENERAL FUND).

Section 8.01. Representation Regarding the Property Tax Limitation Act.

The Borrower recognizes and acknowledges that the amount of taxes it may levy is limited by the state pursuant to Section 15-10-420, as amended (the Property Tax Limitation Act). The Borrower is familiar with the Property Tax Limitation Act and acknowledges that the Loan Repayments to be made under the Agreement and Note are not exceptions to the provisions of the Property Tax Limitation Act. The Borrower represents and covenants that such Loan Repayments can and will be made from revenues available to the Borrower, notwithstanding the provisions of the Property Tax Limitation Act.

Section 8.02. Levy and Appropriate Funds to Repay Loan.

The Borrower agrees that in order to meet its obligation to make the Loan Repayments and all other payments hereunder that it will budget for as authorized and appropriate from taxes or any other available sources in each fiscal year during the term of this Agreement an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest hereon within the limitations of the Property Tax Limitation Act and will reduce other expenditures if necessary to make the payments hereunder when due.

Section 8.03. Reports and Opinion; Inspections.

- (a) The Borrower shall deliver to the Board by no later than August 15 of each year during the term of this Agreement, a certificate in substantially the form attached hereto that the Governing Body of the Borrower has budgeted and appropriated for the then current Fiscal Year an amount sufficient to make the Loan Repayments due in that Fiscal Year, as required in Article VIII hereof.
- (b) The Borrower agrees to permit the Board and the Trustee to examine, visit and inspect, at any reasonable time, the property constituting the Project, and the Borrower's facilities, and any accounts, books and records, including its receipts, disbursements, contracts, investments and any

other matters relating thereto and to its financial standing, and to supply such reports and information as the Board or the Trustee may reasonably require.

ARTICLE IX. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES.

THE BOARD AND ITS AGENTS MAKE NO WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE VALUE, DESIGN, CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY OR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR FITNESS FOR USE OF THE PROJECT OR ANY PORTION THEREOF OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY WITH RESPECT THERETO. In no event shall the Board or the Trustee or their respective agents be liable for any incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages in connection with or arising out of this Agreement or the Project or the existence, furnishing, functioning or Borrower's use of the Project or any item or products or services provided for in this Agreement.

ARTICLE X. OPTION TO PREPAY LOAN.

The Borrower may prepay the Loan in whole or in part upon giving 30 days prior written notice to the Board.

If the Loan is prepaid in part, the principal amount of the Loan shall be reduced by the portion of the prepayment representing principal and the Loan shall be reamortized by ratably reducing the principal portion of each remaining Loan Repayment.

ARTICLE XI. ASSIGNMENT.

Section 11.01. Assignment by Board or Trustee.

- (a) The Borrower expressly acknowledges that all right, title and interest of the Board in and to this Agreement (except for the rights of the Board to indemnification pursuant to Section 13.08 hereof) and the Note have been assigned to the Trustee, as security for the Bonds, under and as provided in the Indenture, and that if any Event of Default shall occur, the Trustee shall be entitled to act hereunder in the place and stead of the Board. In addition, the Borrower acknowledges that the Board has appointed the Trustee as servicer entitled to act hereunder in the place and stead of the Board. This Agreement and the Note including (without limitation) the right to receive payments required to be made by the Borrower hereunder and to compel or otherwise enforce performance by the Borrower of its other obligations hereunder, may be further assigned and reassigned in whole or in part to one or more assignees or subassignees by the Trustee at any time subsequent to their execution without the necessity of obtaining the consent of the Borrower. Forthwith upon any such assignment the Trustee shall notify the Borrower thereof.
- (b) The Borrower acknowledges that payment of the Bonds does not constitute payment of the amounts due under this Agreement.

Section 11.02. Assignment by Borrower.

This Agreement may not be assigned or encumbered by the Borrower for any reason without the express written consent of the Trustee and the Board.

ARTICLE XII. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES.

Section 12.01. Events of Default Defined.

If any of the following events occur, it is hereby defined as and declared to be and to constitute an "Event of Default":

- (a) Failure by the Borrower to pay any Loan Repayment required to be paid hereunder at the time specified herein and the continuation of such failure for a period of three (3) days after telephonic or e-mail notice by the Trustee that such payment has not been received;
- (b) Failure by the Borrower to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement, other than as referred to in Section 12.01(a) for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice, specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, is given to the Borrower by the Trustee, unless the Trustee shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable period, the Trustee will not unreasonably withhold their consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by the Borrower within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the Default is corrected:
- (c) Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the Borrower contained in this Agreement or in any instrument furnished in compliance with or in reference to this Agreement or in connection with the Loan, is false or misleading in any material respect;
- (d) The Borrower files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy under the United States Bankruptcy Code or seeks relief under any provision of any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, or consents to the filing of any petition against it under such law;
- (e) The Borrower is generally not paying its debts as such debts become due, or becomes insolvent or bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a custodian (including without limitation a receiver, liquidator or trustee) of the Borrower or any of its property is appointed by court order or takes possession thereof and such order remains in effect or such possession continues for more than 30 days.

Section 12.02. Notice of Default.

The Borrower agrees to give the Trustee and the Board prompt written notice if any petition referred to in Section 12.01(d) is filed by the Borrower or of the occurrence of any other event or condition which constitutes a Default or an Event of Default immediately upon becoming aware of the existence thereof.

Section 12.03. Remedies on Default.

If an Event of Default referred to in Section 12.01(d) shall have occurred, the Trustee shall declare the Loan and all other amounts due hereunder to be immediately due and payable, and upon notice to the Borrower the same shall become due and payable without further notice or demand. Whenever any Event of Default referred to in Section 12.01 hereof shall have happened and be continuing, the Trustee or the Board shall have the right to take any action permitted or required pursuant to the Indenture and shall take one or any combination of the following remedial steps:

- (a) Declare the Loan and all other amounts due hereunder to be immediately due and payable, and upon notice to the Borrower the same shall become immediately due and payable by Borrower without further notice or demand; and
- (b) Take whatever other action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to collect the amounts then due and thereafter to become due hereunder or to enforce any other of its or the Board's rights hereunder, including without limitation, the appointment of a receiver as provided in the Act.

Section 12.04. Attorneys Fees and Other Expenses.

The Borrower shall on demand pay to the Board or the Trustee the reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys and other reasonable expenses incurred by either of them, or by any agency of the State selected by the Board to act on its behalf or by the Attorney General, in the collection of Loan Repayments or any other sum due or the enforcement of performance of any other obligations of Borrower upon an Event of Default.

Section 12.05. Application of Moneys.

Any moneys collected by the Board or the Trustee pursuant to Section 12.03 hereof shall be applied (a) first, to pay any attorney's fees or other fees and expenses owed by Borrower pursuant to Section 12.04 hereof; (b) second, to pay interest due on the Loan; (c) third, to pay principal due on the Loan; (d) fourth, to pay any other amounts due hereunder; and (e) fifth, to pay interest and principal on the Loan and other amounts payable hereunder but which are not due, as they become due (in the same order, as to amounts which come due simultaneously, as in (a) through (d) in this Section 12.05).

Section 12.06. No Remedy Exclusive, Waiver and Notice.

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Board or the Trustee is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right, remedy or power accruing upon any Default or Event of Default shall impair any such right, remedy or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right, remedy or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the Board or the Trustee to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Article XII, it shall not be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Article XII.

ARTICLE XIII. MISCELLANEOUS.

Section 13.01. Notices.

All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when hand delivered or five days after mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the Borrower at the address specified on the cover hereof and to the other parties at the following addresses:

(1) Board:

Montana Board of Investments

Attn: Bond Program Office

P.O. Box 200126

Helena, Montana 59620-0126

(2) Trustee:

U.S. Bank National Association

Corporate Trust Services PD-WA-T7CT

1420 Fifth Avenue, 7th Floor

Seattle, WA 98101

Any of the parties may, by notice in writing given to the others, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certifies or other communications shall be sent.

Section 13.02. Binding Effect.

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Board, the Borrower and their respective successors and assigns.

Section 13.03. Severability.

In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Section 13.04. Amendments, Changes and Modifications.

This Agreement may not be amended by the Board and the Borrower unless such amendment shall have been consented to in writing by the Trustee.

Section 13.05. Execution in Counterparts.

This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 13.06. Applicable Act.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 13.07. Consents and Approvals.

Whenever the written consent or approval of the Board shall be required under the provisions of this Agreement, such consent or approval may be given by the Executive Director of the Board, unless otherwise provided by law or by rules, regulations or resolutions of the Board or unless delegated to the Trustee.

Section 13.08. Indemnity.

The Borrower agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Board and the Trustee, their respective officers, employees and agents, from and against any and all losses, claims, damages, liability or expenses, of every conceivable kind, character and nature whatsoever, including, but not limited to, losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses (including reasonable fees for attorneys, accountants, consultants and other experts) (collectively referred to hereinafter in this Section 13.08 as "Damages") as follows:

- (a) For all Damages arising out of, resulting from or in any way connected with the Loan or this Agreement, without limitation; and
- (b) For all Damages arising out of, resulting from or in any way connected with the acquisition, construction, installation and operation of the Project.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Borrower shall have no liability for damages solely arising out of, resulting from or connected to the Loan or Agreement of any other Borrower.

Section 13.09. Waiver of Personal Liability.

No member, officer, agent or employee of the Board shall be individually or personally liable for the making of the Loan or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason hereof; but nothing herein contained shall relieve any such member, officer, agent or employee from the performance of any official duty provided by law or by this Agreement.

Section 13.10. Captions.

The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board has executed this Agreement by its duly authorized officers and the Borrower has caused this Agreement to be executed in its name by its duly authorized officers. All of the above occurred as of the date first above written.

BOARD OF INVESTMENTS OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

Ву

Louise Welsh

Its Senior Bond Program Officer

WITNESS OR ATTEST:

By Amy Reeves

Its __Ireasurer/Clerk and Recorder

LEWIS AND CLARK COUNTY COUNTY

By Andy Hunthausen

Its Chairman

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT/SUMMARY OF DISBURSEMENTS FOR LEWIS AND CLARK COUNTY COUNTY

Allocated Amount of Loan

Description of Project

1. Capital improvements to the Law and Justice Center building

\$650,000.00

Draw #	escription of Item	Amount Allocated for Item	Date of Draw	Amount of Draw	Amount Remaining for Item	Remaining Reserved Amount
				Reserved	d Amount	\$650,000.00
2923-01	#1 above	\$650,000.00	6/18/2021	\$308,543.12	\$341,456.88	\$341,456.88

BORROWER'S DRAW CERTIFICATE NO. 1 FOR DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS UNDER THE LOAN AGREEMENT

The undersigned, Authorized Representative of Lewis and Clark County (the "Borrower") under the Loan Agreement, dated as of June 18, 2021 (the "Loan Agreement"), by and between the Board of Investments of the state of Montana (the "Board"), certify pursuant to Section 4.04, as follows:

- 1. We have read Section 4.05 of the Loan Agreement and the subsections of Section 4.04 referred to therein and have reviewed appropriate records and documents of the Borrower relating to matters covered by this Certificate. All capitalized terms used in this Certificate shall have the meanings given them in the Loan Agreement unless otherwise defined herein;
- 2. All terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement to be complied with by the Borrower as of the date hereof have been complied with and satisfied, and all documents described in Section 4 have been delivered;
- 3. The item number, amount, and nature of each item of Project Costs, as shown on the attached Borrower's Cash Advance Certificate, hereby requested to be reimbursed or paid to the Borrower (a) has been paid or incurred, (b) is an eligible Project Cost, and (c) has not been previously reimbursed or paid by the Program under the Loan Agreement;
- 4. To our knowledge after reasonable investigation, there has been no default by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement, which has not been cured; and
- 5. All representations and warranties made by the Borrower in the Loan Agreement are true and correct on and as of the date of this Borrower's Certificate with the same effect as if made on such date.

You are hereby requested to advance pursuant to Section 4.05 of the Loan Agreement the amount shown on the Borrower's Cash Advance Certificate and make payment to the entitled entity to receipt thereof as shown on said Certificate.

WITNESS my hand this 18th day of June, 2021.

	S AND CLARK COUNTY COUN
6	If Huthe
Ву	Andy Hunthausen

ATTEST:

By Almy Reeves

Its Treasurer/Clerk and Recorder

BORROWER'S CASH ADVANCE CERTIFICATE NO. 1

1. Closing Date for Loan: June 18, 2021

2. Cash Amount to be Advanced (wire): \$308,543.12

The Term Over Which the Loan Advance is to be Amortized: 3.

June 18, 2021 through Augutst 15, 2031 (10 years)

4. Items to be Financed (serial number, model):

> Serial and <u>Item</u> **Model Number**

Capital improvements to the Law and Justice Center building \$308,543.12

<u>Amount</u>

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:

wire funds to:

U.S. Bank

ABA # 092900383

For Cr To Lewis and Clark Co Treas.

Acct. #156041300286

FFC Lewis and Clark County

	5/21/2021							
FUNDING	PROJECT #	DATE	COMPANY	DESCRIPTION	INVOICE #	AMOUNT	CHECK #	DATE PA
57345124039020	CF0908	8/27/2020	Cushing Terreli	LJC MEP Assessment fee 4 June services	152924	\$3,124.41	177457	9/4/2
57345124039020	CF0908	8/27/2020	Cushing Terrell	LJC MEP Assessment fee 5 July services	153447	811,844,25	177457	9/4/2
57345124039020	CF0908	9/11/2020	Cushing Terrell	LJC MEP Assessment fee 8 August services	154076	\$5,325.02	177730	9/18/2
57345124039020	CF0908	10/8/2020	Cushing Terrell	LJC MEP Assessment Fee 7 Sept services	154630	\$2,824,54	178187	10/16/2
57345124039020	CF0908	11/19/2020	Abraham Construction Services	Pay App #1 Landlord 25%	20-13-1	\$43,391.81	178916	11/25/2
57345124039020	CF0908	11/19/2020	Dept of Revenue 174	CGR Pay App 1 Landford 25%	CGR.20.13.1	\$438.30	178831	11/25/2
57345124039020	CF0908	11/25/2020	Abreham Construction Services	Pay App #2 Landlord 25%	20-13-2	\$40,707.20	179019	12/4/2
57345124039020	CF0908	11/25/2020	Dept of Revenue 174	CGR Pay App 2 Landford 25%	CGR.20.13.2	\$411,19	178964	12/4/2
57345124039020	CF0908	1/1/2021	Mosaic	Municipal Court A&E Pay App #8	CF0907.6	\$2,983,41	179549	1/8/2
57345124039020	CF0908	1/1/2021	Nico Electronics	Fire Alarm Install Muni Court Project, additional remote annunciator	13083	\$448.00	179536	1/8/
57345124039020	CF0908	The second second	Nico Electronics	Fire Alarm Install Agreement	13082	\$12,960,00		1/8/
57345124039020	CF0908	THE RESERVE OF THE PERSON NAMED IN COLUMN TWO IS NOT THE PERSON NAMED	Cushing Terrell	LJC MEP Assessment Fee 8 Oct services	155223	\$5,422,99		
57345124039020	CF0908	-	Cushing Terrell	LJC MEP Assessment Fee 8 Nov Services	155724	\$2,825.04		
57345124039020	CF0908		Nico Electronics	Install relays to control dampers not on original plans	13101	\$590.00		100/2004-00
57345124039020	CF0908	1/15/2021	Nico Electronics	CO#3 Electrical contractor access control panel & fire alarm.	13119	\$2,481.32	179743	
57345124039020	CF0908	1/15/2021	Cushing Terrall	LJC MEP Assessment Fee 10 Dec Services	156523	\$1,212.51	179802	1/22/
57345124039020	CF0908	1/1/2021	Abraham Construction Services	Pay App #3	20.13.3	\$119,703.08	179569	1/8/
57345124039020	CF0908	1/1/2021	Dept of Revenue 174	CGR Pay App 3 100%	CGR.20.13.3	\$1,209.12	179514	1/8/
57345124039020	CF0908	3/12/2021	Abrehem Construction Services	Pay App #4	20-13-4	\$41,478.67	180742	3/19/
57345124039020	CF0908	3/12/2021	Dept of Revenue 174	CGR Pay App 4	CGR.20.13.4	\$418.98	180684	3/19/
57345124039020	CF0908	4/1/202	Mosaic	Municipal Court A&E Pay App \$7 revised	CF0907.7	\$3,732.75	181087	4/9/
57345124039020	CF0908	5/8/202	City of Helena Building Division	Sign permit, Foundation permit	21-2654	\$259.49	181895	5/14/
57345124039020	CF0908	5/14/202	Cushing Terrall	Muni Court Project Engineering services Jan	156828	\$472.63	181939	5/21/
57345124039020	CF0908	5/14/202	Cushing Terrell	Muni Court Project Engineering services April	158980	\$4,298.61	181939	5/21
					DRAW #1 TOTAL	\$308,543.12		

1-24 16

FILE COPY

Cushing Terrell

Cushing Terreli
Payment Address: PO Box 30071
Billings, MT 59107
Tax ID: 81-0305543 / p 406.248.7455
accountsreceivable@cushingterreli.com

David Knoepke City of Helena 316 North Park Avenue Helena, MT 59623

June 30, 2020

Invoice No:

152924

Contract/PO

Number:

Project

LIC HLN

Helena Law and Justice Center MEP Asmnt

- 1

Professional Services from June 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020

Total Fee

77.500.00

% Complete

55.8379 Total Earned

43,274,41

Previous Fee Billing

39,525.94

Current Fee Billing

3,748.47

Total Fee

3,748.47

Total Project Invoice Amount

\$3,748.47

Our business name has changed to Cushing Terrell. Your system may include a business name such as CTA Architects Engineers or our corporate name of CTA Inc. Please ensure your vendor records are updated.

Split W/ COURT



Payment Address: PO Box 30071 Biflings, MT 59107 Tax ID: 81-0305543 / p 406.248.7455 accountsreceivable@cushingterrell.com

Cushing Terrell

David Knoepke City of Helena 316 North Park Avenue Helena, MT 59623

July 31, 2020

Invoice No:

153447

Contract/PO Number:

Project

UC HLN

Helena Law and Justice Center MEP Asmnt

Professional Services from July 1, 2020 through July 31, 2020

Total Fee

77,500.00

% Complete

71.1209 Total Earned

55,118.66

Previous Fee Billing

43,274.41

Current Fee Billing

11,844.25

Total Fee

Total Project Invoice Amount

11,844.25 \$11,844,25

Outstanding Invoices

Number

Date

Balance

152924

6/30/2020

3,748.47

Total

3,748,47

Our business name has changed to Cushing Terrell. Your system may include a business name such as CTA Architects Engineers or our corporate name of CTA Inc. Please ensure your vendor records are updated.

3825

724902

Cushing Terrell

Cushing Terreli
Payment Address: PO Box 30071
Billings, MT 59107
Tax ID: 81-0305543 / p 406.248.7455
accountsreceivable@cushingterrell.com

Scott Burke
City of Helena
Law & Justice Center
Attn: Scott Burke
316 N Park Avenue
Helena, MT 59623

August 31, 2020 Invoice No:

No: 154076

Contract/PO Number:

Project

LIC_HLN

Helena Law and Justice Center MEP Asmnt

Professional Services from August 1, 2020 through August 31, 2020

Total Fee

77,500.00

% Complete

77.9918 Total Earned

60,443,68

Previous Fee Billing

55,118.66

Current Fee Billing

5,325.02

Total Fee

5,325.02

Total Project Invoice Amount

\$5,325.02

Outstanding Invoices

Number	Date	Balance
152924	6/30/2020	3,748 <i>.</i> 47
153447	7/31/2020	11,844.25
Total		15,592.72

Our business name has changed to Cushing Terrell. Your system may include a business name such as CTA Architects Engineers or our corporate name of CTA Inc. Please ensure your vendor records are updated.



573-4512-403-9020 CF0908

Intercap

Cushing Terrell

Cushing Terrell
Payment Address: PO Box 30071
Billings, MT 59107
Tax ID: 81-0305543 / p 406.248.7455
accountsreceivable@cushingterrell.com

Scott Burke
City of Helena
Law & Justice Center
Attn: Scott Burke
316 N Park Avenue
Helena, MT 59623

September 30, 2020 Invoice No: 154630 Contract/PO Number:

Project

LIC_HLN

Helena Law and Justice Center MEP Asmnt

Professional Services from September 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020

Total Fee

77,500,00

% Complete

81.6364 Total Earned

63,268.22

Previous Fee Billing

60,443.68

Current Fee Billing

2,824.54

Total Fee

2,824.54

Total Project Invoice Amount _

\$2,824.54

Our business name has changed to Cushing Terrell. Your system may include a business name such as CTA Architects Engineers or our corporate name of CTA Inc. Please ensure your vendor records are updated.

FILE COPY

Tenant - 573-4512-403-9020 CF0907 \$130,174.84

A	RR	AH	AW	COL	TALSI	ICTION	SERVICES	TT	C
м	A RTO BY	AS IT I	MINI	W. A. P.	4 7 1 1 1 1 1	36 . 11 16 21 91	THE REAL PROPERTY.	B 48 4	. A.

4 BOMPAKT BLVD.

MONTANA CITY, MOTNANA 59635

Phone: 406 442 2140 Fax: 406 442-2149

A/E#:	20-13
Date:	10/26/2020
Pay Estimate #:	1
Period From:	Project Start
To:	10/31/2020

E	PERIODIC	ESTIMATE	FOR	PARTIAL	PAYMENT
-		ILLES I SUPPLY LE	1 010	1 PAKS 1 1PAL	I PA II INIA IN R

Project Name:	Helena Municipal Court Remodel	A/E/Owner,	City of Helena	
Location:	404 North Fuller St. Helsna, MT. 59801	Address:	316 North Park Helena, MT. 59601	
	Was a second sec	Phone/Fax:	E-mail:	Faoc

RETAINAGE ADJUSTMENT				
1. Total Retainage to Date:	9,227.35			
2. Less Securities Deposited or Retainage Paid Out:				
3. Retainage Withheld (1 - 2)	9,227.35			

CONTRACT AMOUNT STATUS				
Original Contract Amount:		489,900,00		
2. Net +/- by Change Order	(Palls Som Change Order Stormary)	4,885.00		
3. Contract Amount to Date:		494,785.00		

No.	Date Approved	Additions	Daductions
COM	10/21/2020	4,885.00	
	TOTAL O.	4,885.00	0.00
	TOTALS:	4,663.00	
		NET TOTAL:	4,885.0

		CONTRACT STATUS	
1.	Work in Piece (from next page):	(Coi D + E Tistal - Grand Tetals Page 2)	174,582.00
2	Total Work & Stored Material:	(Col G Total -Grand Totals Page 2)	184,547,00
3.	Relatinage Withheld	5%	9,227.35
4.	Total Earned Less Retainage:		175,319.85
5,	Less Pervious Payments:	(Coi D - Prior Ret. Total in Grand Tetals Page 2)	0.00
	Amount Due This Payment:		175,319.65
7.	Less 1% State Contractor's Tex:	(Contracts >4999.93)	1,753.20
8,	Payment Due Contractor:		173,568.45

I hereby certify that this submitted request for payment is correct, thru and just in all respects and that payment or credit has not previously been received. I future warrant and certify by submission of this request that all previous work for which payment has been received in tree and clear of all liens, disputes, claims, security interest, encumbrances, or causes of action of any type or tank in favor of the contractor, subcontractors, material suppliers, or other persons or entities and do hereby release the owner from such.

Submitted by: Abesha Construction Serves	State	Date:	10/24/2020
Reviewed by: Mosaic Architecture	Mark Rolem	Date:	10/26/2020
Approved by: City of Helena	- 1- Su-	Date:	10/26/2020
FOR CWNER'S USE: Davis-Bacon cartified person on file (for federally funded projects only where D-B applicati?	Initials of PM/CM:		Onte:

174

MONTANA CGR-2 Rev 01-10



1% Contractor's Gross Receipts Gross Receipts Withholding Return

Form CGR-2 is required to be completed and mailed to the Department of Revenue within 30 days after each payment is made to the prime contractor or subcontractor.

1	Contract awarded by: Enter the federal employer identification number, busin "X" in the "Government Entity" box if you are remitting the 1% contractor's gross					
	prime contractor. Place an "X" in the "Prime Contractor" box if you are allocating the 1% contractor's gross receipts					
	from your prime contractor's account to your subcontractor's account.	O-77	and the second second	a group roompto		
	Government Entity Prime Contractor	r 🗆				
	Federal Identification Number (FEIN) 81-6001276					
	Name City of Helena					
	Address 316 N. Park Avenue					
	City Helena State N	T	Zip Code	59623		
2.	Contract awarded to: Enter the federal employer identification number, busing in the "Prime Contractor" box if you are remitting the 1% contractor's gross recontracted an "X" in the "Subcontractor" box if you are allocating the 1% contractor's contractor's account to your subcontractor's account. Prime Contractor Subcontractor	eipts on b s gross re	ehalf of a p	rime contractor.		
	Federal Identification Number (FEIN) 46-5026514					
	Name Abraham Construction Services LLC					
	Address 4 Bompart Blvd.					
	City Montana City State M	1T	Zip Code	59635		
3.	Enter the Government Issued Purchase Order Number here.	3.	Project #	20-13		
4.	4. Enter the contract award date here					
5.	5. Enter the month and year this payment was earned					
6.						
7.	Multiply the amount on line 6 by 1% (.01) and enter the result here. This is you Contractor's Gross Receipts.		\$	1,753.20		
8.	Subtract line 7 from line 6 and enter the result here. This is the net amount pathe prime contractor or subcontractor.		\$	173,566.45		
9.	Check the box below that identifies the type of return you are filing and enter the payment was made to the prime contractor or subcontractor		11 / 27	/20_20_		
	9(a) 🗷 I am enclosing the amount reported on line 7 for credit to my prime cont	tractor's a	account.			
	9(b) ☐ I am allocating the amount reported on line 7 for credit to my subcontract	ctor's acc	ount.			
10.	Enter a description of the work performed under this contract.					
	Interior remodeling of the first floor office spaces. Space reconfiguration, new of	eling syst	ems, new fi	nishes,		
	new lighting, renovation of mechanical systems, and renovation of two restroom	s for ADA	access.			
11.	Enter the location in Montana where this work is performed. Be specific with you	ır descrip	tion.			
	Law & Justice Center 406 Fuller Avenue Helena MT 59601					
	First floor					
eturr	holding return submitted by: Select the appropriate box identifying which entity and enter the information requested below. Government Entity Prime Contractor	y is comp		etum; sign this		
	arer's Signature					
-		ate 11/2	0/2020			
elep	hone Number 406-447-8484 Fax Number					

INV 20-13-2

ABRAHAM CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC

4 ROMPART BLVD.

A/E #:	20-13	
Date:	11/24/2020	
Pay Estimate #:	2	
Period From:	11/1/2020	
Tor	11/30/2020	

MONTANA CTTY, MOTNANA 59635 Period From: 11/1/2020 To: 11/30/2020 PERIODIC ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT Project Name: Helena Municipal Court Remodel A/E/Owner: City of Helena Location: 404 North Fuller St. Helena, MT. 59601 Phone/Fax: E-mail: Fex:
Project Name: Helena Municipal Count Remodel A/E/Owner: City of Helena Location: 404 North Puller St. Helena, MT. 59601 Address: 316 North Park Helena, MT. 59601
Project Name: Helena Municipal Court Remodel A/E/Owner: City of Helena Location: 404 North Fuller St. Helena, MT. 59601 Address: 316 North Park Halena, MT. 59601
Location: 404 North Fuller St. Helere, NT. 59801 Address: 316 North Park Helena, MT. 59801
Location: 404 North Paller St. Helere, MT. 59601 Address: 316 North Park Helena, MT. 59601
RETAINAGE ADJUSTMENT CONTRACT AMOUNT STATUS
RETAINAGE ADJUSTMENT CONTRACT AMOUNT STATUS Il Retainage to Date: 17,889.95 1. Original Contract Amount: 489.90
s Securities Deposited or Retainings Parid Out 2. Nat -/- by Change Order (Palis term Change Order Semmany) 4,88
ninege Withheld (1 - 2) 17,883.86 3. Contract Amount to Date: 494,78
to the state of th
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY CONTRACT STATUS
No. Date Approved Additions Deductions 1. Work in Place (from next page): (Cel D + E Total - Greet Telais Page 2) 357,67
2. Total Work & Stored Misterial: (Cal G Tatal - Grand Totals Page 2) 357,67
3. Retainage Withheld 5% 17,86
4. Total Earned Less Retainage; 339,70
5. Libes Pervious Payments: (Cei D - Peter Ret. Total in Grand Totals Page 2) 175,3:
8. Amount Due This Payment: 164,4
TOTALS: 4,895,00 0.00 7. Lees 1% State Contractor's Text: (Contracts >4091,99) 1,80
NET TOTAL: 4,865.00 8. Payment Due Confractor: 162,8



1% Contractor's Gross Receipts Gross Receipts Withholding Return

MONTANA CGR-2 Rev 01-10 INV# CGR.20.13.2

Form CGR-2 is required to be completed and mailed to the Department of Revenue within 30 days after each payment is made to the prime contractor or subcontractor.

1	Contract awarded by: Enter the federal employer identifice "X" in the "Government Entity" box if you are remitting the 1 prime contractor. Place an "X" in the "Prime Contractor" box from your prime contractor's account to your subcontractor's Government Entity	% contractor's gross if you are allocating	receipt the 1%	s payment o	on behalf of a	5
1	Federal Identification Number (FEIN) 81-6001276			0.5 ki) vis		7
	Name City of Helena					\dashv
	Address 316 N. Park Avenue			***************************************		1
	City Helena	State M	T	Zip Code	59623	1
2.	Contract awarded to: Enter the federal employer identificat in the "Prime Contractor" box if you are remitting the 1% con Place an "X" in the "Subcontractor" box if you are allocating to contractor's account to your subcontractor's account. Prime Contractor	tractor's gross recei	ipts on b gross re	ehalf of a p	rime contractor	
	Federal Identification Number (FEIN) 46-5026514	***************************************			*****	1
	Name Abraham Construction Services LLC					1
	Address 4 Bompart Blvd.		****			1
	City Montana City	State MT	-	Zip Code	59635	7
3.	Enter the Government Issued Purchase Order Number here.		3.			1
4.	Enter the contract award date here	*********************	4.	_08_/	31 /20 20	1
5.	Enter the month and year this payment was earned		5.	_12	/20 20	1
6.	Enter the gross dollar amount due to the prime contractor or	subcontractor here.	6.	\$	164,473.50	1
7.	Multiply the amount on line 6 by 1% (.01) and enter the result Contractor's Gross Receipts			\$	1,644.74	Jinde
8.	Subtract line 7 from line 6 and enter the result here. This is the prime contractor or subcontractor			\$	162,828.77	\$411
9.	Check the box below that identifies the type of return you are the payment was made to the prime contractor or subcontract			12 / 04	/20 20	
	9(a) A I am enclosing the amount reported on line 7 for cred	lit to my prime contr	actor's a	ccount.		
	9(b) I am allocating the amount reported on line 7 for cred	it to my subcontract	or's acc	ount.		
10.	Enter a description of the work performed under this contract.			11000100000		
	Interior remodeling of the first floor office spaces. Space reco	onfiguration, new cel	ing syst	ems, new fi	nishes,	
	new lighting, renovation of mechanical systems, and renovation	on of two restrooms	for ADA	access.		
11.	Enter the location in Montana where this work is performed. B	e specific with your	descrip	lion.		
	Law & Justice Center 406 Fuller Avenue Helena MT 59601	2.8				
	First floor					
returr	nolding return submitted by: Select the appropriate box idention and enter the information requested below. Government Entity A Prime Contractor		-	eting this re	turn; sign this	
	arer's Signature		An #410	E/0000		
	rer's Title Troy Sampson, Community Facilities Superinte		te 11/2	0/2020		
relep	hone Number 406-447-8484 Fax	Number			1	



Mosaic Architecture, P.C.

PROJECT:

City of Helena Municipal Court

To:

Scott Burke

City of Helena

INVOICE CF0907.6

DATE:

12/7/2020

PERIOD FROM:

9/8/2020

TO:

12/1/2020

CONTRACT SUMMARY

In the state of th	
Basic Services Contract Amount (Not to Exceed)	\$30,230.46
Previous Basic Contract Billed (Excludes Add. Serv, Reimbursables & Other Costs)	\$5,000.00
Contract Amount Billed This Period	\$2,649.20
Basic Services Contract Balance	\$22,581.26

PAST BILLING SUMMARY	Previous Billing	Paid to Date	Outstanding Balance
Basic Services	\$23,521.32	\$22,575.18	\$946.14
Hourly Services	\$2,480.00	\$2,480.00	\$0.00
Additional Services	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Monthly Reimbursable Expenses	\$397.75	\$156.70	\$241.05
Consultant Costs	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
TOTAL	\$26,399.07	\$25,211.88	\$1,187.19

THIS MONTH'S ACTIVITY	
Basic Services This Period	\$2,649 20
Hourly Services	\$0.00
Additional Consultant Services This Period	\$0.00
Monthly Reimbursable Expenses This Period	\$0.00
+Total This Period	\$2,649.20

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE \$3,836.39 THANK YOU. Signed Paid \$ 2,963.41)
Split w/ Court fund 12/7/2020 Date

We appreciate your business! Payment is due upon receipt of this invoice.



Invoice COPY

Mosaic Architecture, P.C.

_	-	-	 	_
100	ю	Λ		г.
P	•	11	121	

City of Helena Municipal Court

To:

Scott Burke City of Helena

INVOICE

6

DATE:

12/7/2020

PERIOD FROM: 9/8/2020

TO:

12/1/2020

Copies for Entry.

GONTRACT SUMMARY

Basic Services Contract Amount (Not to Exceed)	\$30,230.46
Previous Basic Contract Billed (Excludes Add. Serv, Reimbursables & Other Costs)	\$5,000.00
Contract Amount Billed This Period	\$2,649.20
Basic Services Contract Balance	\$22,581.26

PAST BILLING SUMMARY	Previous Billing	Paid to Date	Outstanding Balance
Basic Services	\$23,521.32	\$22,575.18	\$946.14
Hourly Services	\$2,480.00	\$2,480.00	\$0.00
Additional Services	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Monthly Reimbursable Expenses	\$397.75	\$156.70	\$241.05
Consultant Costs	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
TOTAL	\$26,399.07	\$25,211.88	\$1,187.19

THIS MONTH'S ACTIVITY	
Basic Services This Period	\$2,649.20
Hourly Services	\$0.00
Additional Consultant Services This Period	\$0.00
Monthly Reimbursable Expenses This Period	\$0.00
+Total This Period	\$2,649,20

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE

\$3,836.39

THANK YOU.

Signed _____

Date

12/7/2020

We appreciate your business! Payment is due upon receipt of this invoice.

573-4512-403-4020 CF 0908

NICO ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS, INC.

1331 EUCLID AVE HELENA, MT 59601 406-442-7857



Invoice

Date Invoice # 12/21/2020 13083

		71000	
DU Ta			
Bill To			
Andrews Tuesday			

CITY OF HELENA - FACILITIES DEPT. 316 N. PARK AVE. HELENA, MT. 59623

P.O. No. Terms Project

Net 30

		0.000000	
Quantity	Description	Rate	Amount
	Remote Annunciator for 406 Fuller		448.00
hank you for your	business.	Total	\$448.00

575- 4514-405-4000 6-0708

NICO ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS, INC.

1331 EUCLID AVE **HELENA, MT 59601** 406-442-7857



Date	invoice #
12/21/2020	13082

DIII 10
CITY OF HELENA - FACILITIES DEPT. 316 N. PARK AVE. HELENA, MT. 59623
AAAAAAAN SENG LYAL. WUMAW

P.O. No.	Terms	Project
	Net 30	

Quartity	Description		Rate		Amount
2 -21	Installed fire alarm system at 406 Fuller Municipal Court remodel	as bid		50.00	12,960.00
ınk you for your	business.		Total		\$12,960.00

3825



FILE COPY PAID DEC 31 2020 Cushing Terrell Payment Address: PO Box 30071 Billings, MT 59107

> Tax ID: 81-0305543 / p 406.248.7455 accountsreceivable@cushingterrell.com

Scott Burke

City of Helena

Law & Justice Center

Attn: Scott Burke

316 N Park Avenue

Helena, MT 59623

October 31, 2020

Invoice No:

155223

Contract/PO

Number:

Project

LIC_HLN

Helena Law and Justice Center MEP Asmnt

Professional Services from October 1, 2020 through October 31, 2020

Total Fee

77,500.00

% Complete

88,6338 Total Earned

68,691.21

Previous Fee Billing

63,268.22

Current Fee Billing

5,422.99

Total Fee

5,422,99

Total Project Invoice Amount

\$5,422.99



FILE COPY
DEC 31 2020

Payment Address: PO Box 30071 Billings, MT 59107

Tex ID: 81-0305543 / p 406.248.7455 accounts receivable@cushingterrell.com

Scott Burke
City of Helena
Law & Justice Center
Attn: Scott Burke

Invoice No: 155724
Contract/PO
Number:

November 30, 2020

Project

LIC HLN

Helena Law and Justice Center MEP Asmnt

Professional Services from November 1, 2020 through November 30, 2020

Total Fee

316 N Park Avenue Helena, MT 59623

77,500.00

% Complete

92.279 Total Earned

71,516.25

Previous Fee Billing

68,691.21

Current Fee Billing

2,825.04

Total Fee

2,825.04

Total Project Invoice Amount

\$2,825.04

Outstanding Invoices

Number

Date

Balance

155223

10/31/2020

5,422.99

Total

5,422.99

573-4512.403.9020 CF0908 NICO ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS, INC. 884

1331 EUCLID AVE HELENA, MT 59601 406-442-7857

H	2	88		o esse	Ą
			n	VO	h

Date	Involce #
12/31/2020	13101

CITY OF HELENA - FA	CH Trice Debr	
316 N. PARK AVE.	CILITIES DEPT.	1
HELENA, MT. 59623		1
V-1-1-20010 •		1
		1
		1
1		

P.O. No.	Terms	Project
	Net 30	

Quantity	Description	Rate	Amount
5	Service call on fire alarm system at Municipal Court - installed relays to control dampers not on original plans Addressable relay module 201T relay	92.00 103.00 27.00	Amount 460.00 103.00 27.00
ak you for your	business.	Total	\$590.00

lotai

3-4512-403-9020 CF0908

NICO ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS, INC.

1331 EUCLID AVE HELENA, MT 59601 406-442-7857

Invoice

Date	Invoice#
1/8/2021	13119

BIII To

CITY OF HELENA - FACILITIES DEPT. 316 N. PARK AVE. HELENA, MT. 59623 FILE COPY
RECEIVED
CITY COUNTY BUILDING

IAM 1 1 2026

P.O. No.	Terms	Project
	Net 30	

Quantity	Description	Rate	Amount
	Electrical contractor invoice for 406 Fuller Municipal Court - access Electrical Contractor invoice for 406 Fuller Municipal Court - fire at	control 1,213 arm 1,265	3.50 1,213.50 7.82 1,267.82
nk you for your	business.	Total	\$2,481.32

Cushing Terrell

Cushing Terrell
Payment Address: PO 80x 30071
Billings, MT 59107
Tax ID: 81-0305543 / p 406.248.7455
accountsreceivable@cushingterrell.com

Scott Burke
City of Helena
Law & Justice Center
Attn: Scott Burke
316 N Park Avenue
Helena, MT 59623

December 31, 2020

Invoice No:

156523

Contract/PO Number:

Project

LIC HLN

Helena Law and Justice Center MEP Asmnt

Professional Services from December 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020

Total Fee

77,500.00

% Complete

93.8436 Total Earned

72,728.76

Previous Fee Billing

71,516.25

Current Fee Billing

1,212.51

Total Fee

1,212.51

Total Project Invoice Amount

\$1,212.51

Outstanding Invoices

Number	Date	Balance
155223	10/31/2020	5,422.99
155724	11/30/2020	2,825.04
Total		8,248.03

ABRAHAM CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC

4 BOMPART BLVD.

A/E#:	20-13	
Date:	12/28/2020	
Pay Estimate #:	. 3	
Period From:	12/1/2020	
To:	12/31/2020	_

			ONTANA CITY, MO Phone: 406 442 2140 Fax		=)=0. = 0.	Pe	riod From: To:	12/1/2020 12/31/2020
		PERIO	DDIC ESTIMATE	FOR P	ARTIAL PAYM	ENT		
P	roject Name: Helena Municipa	al Court Remodel		A/E/Owner,	City of Helena			
	Location: 404 North Fuller				318 North Park Helena, M	T. 59601		
				Phone/Fax:	E	melt		Feac
				records				
		GE ADJUSTMENT				CONTRACT AMOU	NT STATUS	
1. Total Retain			24,247.85	1. Origin	el Contract Amount:			489,900.00
	ties Deposited or Retainage Pa	id Out:		2. Net +	by Change Order	Pells from Chang	o Cesler Sammary)	12,703.00
3. Retainage	Mithheld (1 - 2)		24,247.65	3. Contra	act Amount to Date:			502,603.00
	CHANGE	ORDER SUMMARY				CONTRACT 8	TATUS	
No.	Date Approved	Additions	Deductions		in Place (from next page):	(Col O + E Total - Ga	and Totals Page 2)	484,953.00
COM	10/21/2020	4,885.00		7.00 17.000.000	Work & Stored Material:	(Cel G Total -Gr	and Totals Page 2)	484,953.00
CO#2	12/23/2020	7,818.00		3. Retain	rage Withheld		5%	24,247.85
				4. Total	Earned Lass Retainage:			460,705.35
				5. Less	Pervious Peymenis;	(Cal D - Palor Ret. Total in Gr	and Totals Page 2)	339,793.15
				6, Amo	net Due This Payment:			120,912.20
	TOTALS:	12,703.00	0.00	7. Less	1% State Contractor's Text	E	Contracts >4999.89)	1,209.12
		NET TOTAL:	12,703,00	8, Payn	ent Due Contractor:			119,703.08
which payment	that been received is free and cle release the owner from such. Submitted by: Company Contracts	er of all lions, disputes, claims, s co Cursta Curstan rchitecture	ecurity interest, encumbrances,	credit has not pror causes of act	evicusty been received. I tutu fon of any type or kink in fewor	are werrant and certify by r of the contractor, subcon	eubmission of th firactors, material Dete; Date:	Is request that all previous work for all suppliers, or other persons or entities 12/29/2020
	TTOTAL 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4							2.9



1% Contractor's Gross Receipts Gross Receipts Withholding Return



Form CGR-2 is required to be completed and mailed to the Department of Revenue within 30 days after each payment is made to the prime contractor or subcontractor.

100 010	and to the brane action with at any deliberation		
1.	Contract awarded by: Enter the federal employer identification nur "X" in the "Government Entity" box if you are remitting the 1% contractor prime contractor. Place an "X" in the "Prime Contractor" box if you a from your prime contractor's account to your subcontractor's account Government Entity Prime	actor's gross receip re allocating the 19	ts payment on behalf of a
	Federal Identification Number (FEIN) 81-6001276		
	Name City of Helena		
	Address 316 N. Park Avenue		
1 1	City Helena	State MT	Zip Code 59623
2.	Contract awarded to: Enter the federal employer identification number in the "Prime Contractor" box if you are remitting the 1% contractor's Place an "X" in the "Subcontractor" box if you are allocating the 1% contractor's account to your subcontractor's account. Prime Contractor Substituting Technology Substituting Technology Substituting Prime Contractor Substituting Technology Substi	gross receipts on	behalf of a prime contractor.
	Federal Identification Number (FEIN) 46-5026514		
	Name Abraham Construction Services LLC		
	Address 4 Bompart Blvd.		
	City Montana City	State MT	Zip Code 59635
3.	Enter the Government Issued Purchase Order Number here	3.	
4.	Enter the contract award date here.	4.	08 / 31 /20 20
5.	Enter the month and year this payment was earned	5.	01 /20 21
6.	Enter the gross dollar amount due to the prime contractor or subcont	ractor here6.	\$ 120,912.20
	Multiply the amount on line 6 by 1% (.01) and enter the result here. T		\$ 1,209.12
	Subtract line 7 from line 6 and enter the result here. This is the net a the prime contractor or subcontractor.		\$ 119,703.08
	Check the box below that identifies the type of return you are filing ar the payment was made to the prime contractor or subcontractor		01 / 07 /20 21
9	9(a) 🗷 I am enclosing the amount reported on line 7 for credit to my	prime contractor's	account.
1 5	9(b) I am allocating the amount reported on line 7 for credit to my	subcontractor's acc	count.
10. E	Enter a description of the work performed under this contract.		
1	nterior remodeling of the first floor office spaces. Space reconfigurate	tion, new celing sys	tems, new finishes,
r	new lighting, renovation of mechanical systems, and renovation of two	o restrooms for AD	A access.
rections) into	Enter the location in Montana where this work is performed. Be speci- Law & Justice Center 406 Fuller Avenue Helena MT 59601	fic with your descrip	otion.
F	First floor		
Withh eturn	olding return submitted by: Select the appropriate box identifying and enter the information requested below. Government Entity Prime Contractor	6	pleting this return; sign this
repar	rer's Signature		
	rer's Title Troy Sampson, Community Facilities Superintendent	Date 12/3	31/2020
Tolanh	one Number 406-447-8484 Fay Number	r	

ABRAHAM CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC

A/E#:	20-13	
Date:	2/10/2021	
Pay Estimate #:	4	
Period From:	1/1/2021	
To:	2/10/2021	

				4 BOMPART B ONTANA CITY, MO Phone: 405 442 2140 Fax	TNANA 5		0.5	restimate #: Period From: To:	1/1/2021 2/10/2021	
	Project Name: Location:		court Remodel	ODIC ESTIMATE	A/E/Owner: Address:	City of Helena 316 North Park Helena,	MT. 59801			
					Phone/Fax:		E-mail:		Fax:	
		RETARIAGE	ADJUSTMENT				CONTRACT AMO	UNT STATUS		
1. Total Re	stainage to Date:			25,130.15	1. Origi	nel Contract Amount:				489,900.00
		d or Retainage Paid C	Out	25,130.15	2. Net	→ by Change Order	(Pulls from Clas	ngs Order Susmary)		12,703.00
3. Retaine	ge Withheld (1 - 2	2)		0,00	3. Cen	ract Amount to Date:				502,603.00
			RDER SUMMARY				CONTRACT	STATUS		
No.	Name and Address of the Owner, where the Person of the Owner, where the Person of the Owner, where the Person of the Owner, where the Owner, which is the	Approved	the second name of the second na	Deductions		k in Place (from next page		Grand Totals Page 2)		502,603.00
CON	The second secon	21/2020	4,885.00			Work & Stored Meterial:	(Cd @ Total	Grand Totals Page 2		502,603.00
CO#2	127	23/2020	7,818.00		4	inage Withheld		5%		0.00
						i Earned Less Retainage:				602,603.00
					- Continued the same	Pervious Payments:	(Col D - Paler Ret, Total In	Grand Totale Page 2)		460,705.35
						ount Due This Payment:				41,897.85
		TOTALS:	12,703.00	0,00	-	s 1% State Contractor's To	EDC:	(Contracts >4999.95)		418.98
			NET TOTAL:	12,703.00	8. Pay	ment Due Contractor:		i		41,478.67
which payer	rtify that this submit nent has been rect oby release the ow	alved is tree and clear o	nt is comect, thru and just in a if all liens, disputes, claims, s	all respects and that payment or acurity interest, ensumbances,	credit has not por causes of a	previously been received. I decide a fany type or kink in le	luture warrant and certify to swor of the contractor, subs	y submission of thi contractors, majoris	is request that all praviou il suppliens, or other perso	n work for ann or entities
	Submitted by	(Company/Codencies)	Gardenet	in Sames	- Diame	IM!		Date;	2/1/20	2/

2/13/2021 Mosaic Architecture Reviewed by: 3/10/2021 City of Helena, Troy Sampson Initials of PM/CM: FOR OWNER'S USE: Davis-Bacon certified payroll on file (for federally funded projects only where D-B applies)?



1% Contractor's Gross Receipts Gross Receipts Withholding Return

MONTANA CGR-2 Rev 01-10

INV# CGR.20.13.4

Form CGR-2 is required to be completed and mailed to the Department of Revenue within 30 days after each payment is made to the prime contractor or subcontractor.

1	. Contract awarded by: Enter the federal employer identification number, business "X" in the "Government Entity" box if you are remitting the 1% contractor's gross of prime contractor. Place an "X" in the "Prime Contractor" box if you are allocating the from your prime contractor's account to your subcontractor's account. Government Entity Prime Contractor	receipt he 1%	ts payment on behalf of a
	Federal Identification Number (FEIN) 81-6001276		
900	Name City of Helena		
	Address 316 N. Park Avenue		
	City Helena State MT	-	Zip Code 59623
2.	Contract awarded to: Enter the federal employer identification number, business in the "Prime Contractor" box if you are remitting the 1% contractor's gross receipt Place an "X" in the "Subcontractor" box if you are allocating the 1% contractor's grocontractor's account to your subcontractor's account. Prime Contractor Subcontractor	ts on b	sehalf of a prime contractor
	Federal Identification Number (FEIN) 46-5026514		A 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 10
	Name Abraham Construction Services LLC	Particular	
	Address 4 Bompart Blvd.		
	City Montana City State MT		Zip Code 59635
3.	Enter the Government Issued Purchase Order Number here.	3.	
4.	Enter the contract award date here.	4.	08 / 31 /20 20
5.	Enter the month and year this payment was earned.	5.	03 /20 21
6.			\$ 41,897.65
7.	Multiply the amount on line 6 by 1% (.01) and enter the result here. This is your 19 Contractor's Gross Receipts.	% 7.	\$ 418.98
8.	Subtract line 7 from line 6 and enter the result here. This is the net amount paid t the prime contractor or subcontractor.		\$ 41,478.67
9.	Check the box below that identifies the type of return you are filing and enter the dathe payment was made to the prime contractor or subcontractor.	ate 9.	03 / 19 /20 21
	9(a) 🗷 I am enclosing the amount reported on line 7 for credit to my prime contract		
-	9(b) I am allocating the amount reported on line 7 for credit to my subcontractor	's acc	ount.
	Enter a description of the work performed under this contract.		
Per	Interior remodeling of the first floor office spaces. Space reconfiguration, new celling		The state of the s
The state of the s	new lighting, renovation of mechanical systems, and renovation of two restrooms for		
	Enter the location in Montana where this work is performed. Be specific with your de	ascript	tion.
l 1-	Law & Justice Center 406 Fuller Avenue Helena MT 59601		
	First floor		
return	noiding return submitted by: Select the appropriate box identifying which entity is a and enter the information requested below. Government Entity IX Prime Contractor I Submer's Signature	95/4	eting this return; sign this
		3/13/	/2021
	none Number 406-447-8484 Fax Number	- 1U/	



Invoice

Mosaic Architecture, P.C.

CF0907.7

PROJECT:

City of Helena Municipal Court

To:

Scott Burke City of Helena

INVOICE

7- revised

DATE:

4/1/2021

PERIOD FROM:

12/1/2020

TO:

4/1/2021

CONTRACT SUMMARY

Basic Services Contract Amount (Not to Exceed) \$30,230.46
Additional Services \$3,340.00
Total Contract (not including expenses) \$33,570.46
Previous billing \$29,837.74

PAST BILLING SUMMARY	Previous Billing	Paid to Date	Outstanding Balance
Basic Services	\$25,310.55	\$26,497.74	(\$1,187.19)
Hourty Services	\$3,340.00	\$3,340.00	\$0.00
Additional Services	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
		\$29,837.74	
Monthly Reimbursable Expenses	\$397.75	\$397.75	\$0.00
			\$0.00
TOTAL	\$29,048.30	\$30,235.49	(\$1,187.19)

THIS MONTH'S ACTIVITY	
Basic Services This Period	\$4,919.94
Hourty Services	\$0.00
Additional Consultant Services This Period	\$0.00
Monthly Reimbursable Expenses This Period	\$0.00
+ Total This Period	\$4,919.94

TOTAL	AMOUNT	DUE

\$3,732.75

THANK YOU.

Signed

Date

4/1/2021

We appreciate your business! Payment is due upon receipt of this Invoice.

FILE COPY



City of Helena, Building Division 316 N. Park, Room 435 Helena, MT 59623 408-447-8438 fax 406-447-8450 Invoice No. 21-2654

Name Address City Phone	City of Helena - Tr 316 N Park Ave Helena	 ZIP <u>59601</u>	Date Order No. Rep FOB	5/6/2021
Qty 1	BCOM21-00050- s		\$58.99 \$200.50	\$58.99 \$200.50
and the second s			SubTotal	\$259.49 \$0.00

Please Mail & Make Payment to City of Helena, Building Division



PAID MAY 14 2021

FLE COPY

Cushing Terrel!

Payment Address: PO Box 30071

156828

Billings, MT 59107

Tax ID: 81-0305543 / p 406.248.7455

accountsreceivable@cushingterrell.com

Scott Burke

City of Helena

Law & Justice Center

Attn: Scott Burke

316 N Park Avenue

Helena, MT 59623

Project

LJC_HLN

Helena Law and Justice Center MEP Asmnt

Professional Services from January 1, 2021 through January 31, 2021

Total Fee

77,500.00

% Complete

94.4534 Total Earned

73,201.39

January 31, 2021

Invoice No:

Number:

Contract/PO

Previous Fee Billing

72,728.76

Current Fee Billing

472.63

Total Fee

472.63

Total Project Invoice Amount

\$472.63

Cushing Terrell PAID MAY 14 2021

FILE COPY

Cushing Terrell

Payment Address: PO Box 30071

Billings, MT 59107

Tax ID: 81-0305543 / p 406.248.7455

accountsreceivable@cushingterrell.com

Scott Burke

City of Helena

Law & Justice Center

Attn: Scott Burke

316 N Park Avenue

Helena, MT 59623

April 30, 2021

Invoice No: Contract/PO

o: 158980

Number:

Project

LIC HLN

Helena Law and Justice Center MEP Asmnt

Professional Services from April 1, 2021 through April 30, 2021

Total Fee

77,500.00

% Complete

100.00 Total Earned

77,500.00

Previous Fee Billing

73,201,39

Current Fee Billing

4,298.61

Total Fee

4,298.61

Total Project Invoice Amount

\$4,298.6

Outstanding Invoices

Number 156828

Total

Date

Balance

1/31/2021

472.63 **472.63**

PROMISSORY NOTE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Lewis and Clark County, a political subdivision organized under the laws of the state of Montana (the "Borrower"), hereby promises to pay to the order of the Board of Investments of the State of Montana (the "Board") the principal amount of SIX HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS (\$650,000.00) or such lesser amount as shall actually be advanced to the Borrower under the Loan Agreement (hereinafter defined) as evidenced by the Amortization Schedule attached hereto and as annually revised by March 15 for every year the loan advance is outstanding, together with interest thereon in the amount calculated as provided in the Loan Agreement, payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15 in the amounts and as provided in the Loan Agreement and as set forth hereto.

The maturity date of this loan as evidenced by this Promissory Note is August 15, 2031 or sooner at the option of the Borrower pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

This Promissory Note is issued pursuant to the Loan Agreement dated as of June 18, 2021, between the Board and the Borrower (the "Loan Agreement"), and issued in consideration of the Ioan made thereunder (the "Loan") and in evidence of the obligations of the Borrower set forth in Section 5 thereof. This Promissory Note has been assigned to the Trustee under the Indentures of the Program. Payments hereunder shall be made directly to the Trustee for the account of the Board pursuant to such assignment. Such assignment has been made as security for the payment of the Board of Investments' INTERCAP bonds. All of the terms, conditions and provisions of the Loan Agreement are, by this reference hereto, incorporated herein as a part of this Promissory Note.

Interest on this Note is computed on a 365/365 simple interest basis; that is, by applying the ratio of the interest rate over the number of days in a year, multiplied by the outstanding principal balance, multiplied by the actual number of days the principal balance is outstanding. All interest payable under this Note is computed using this method.

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, advances shall be made to the Borrower under the Loan Agreement from time to time upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Loan Agreement.

This Promissory Note is entitled to the benefits and is subject to the conditions of the Loan Agreement. The obligations of the Borrower to make the payments required hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional without any defense or right of setoff, counterclaim or recoupment by reason of any default by the Board under the Loan Agreement or under any other indebtedness or liability at any time owing to the Borrower by the Board or for any other reason.

This Promissory Note is subject to optional prepayment under the terms and conditions provided in Article X of the Loan Agreement upon giving 30 days prior written notice to the Board.

If an "Event of Default" occurs under Section 12.01 of the Loan Agreement, the principal of this Promissory Note may be declared due and payable in the manner and to the extent provided in Article XII of the Loan Agreement.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED, COVENANTED AND AGREED that all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Montana to be done, to exist, to happen and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note, in order to make it a valid and binding obligation of the Borrower according to its terms, have been done, do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form, time and manner as so required; that the Borrower will,

as authorized by and according to applicable provisions and limitations of law annually levy sufficient tax receipts or collect sufficient revenues, as the case may be, with other funds available therefor, to pay the principal and interest hereon when due; and that this Note, together with all other indebtedness of the Borrower outstanding on the date of original issue hereof and on the date of its actual issuance and delivery, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation of indebtedness of the Borrower.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lewis and Clark County has caused this Promissory Note to be duly executed, attested and delivered, as of this 18th day of June, 2021.

SEAL)	
By Amy Reeves	
Its Treasurer/Clerk and Recorder	

LEWIS AND CLARK COUNTY COUNTY

By Andy Hunthausen
Its Chairman

Board of Investments of the State of Montana hereby assigns the foregoing Loan Agreement and Promissory Note to U.S. Bank National Association (formerly known as First Trust Company of Montana), as Trustee.

BOARD OF INVESTMENTS OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

By <u>Louise Welsh</u>

Its Senior Bond Program Officer

MONTANA BOARD OF INVESTMENTS ANNUAL ADJUSTABLE RATE TENDER OPTION MUNICIPAL FINANCE CONSOLIDATION ACT BONDS (INTERCAP REVOLVING PROGRAM)

Municipality:	Lewis and Clark County	Final Payment:	August 15, 2031
Total Commitment:	\$650,000.00	\$650,000.00 Total # of Payments:	
Total Draws to Date:	\$0.00	Draw Number:	2923 1
This Draw Down:	\$308,543.12	Date of this Draw:	June 18, 2021
Remaining Commitmer		Date of Loan Agreement:	June 18, 2021
Project: / and Justice	Center Building Improvements	Series:	2007

Payment Due	Interest Rate	# Days Due_	Interest Payment	Principal <u>Payment</u>	O/S Loan Balance	Total Amount of Payment
		227212		ning Balance**	308,543.12	*please see comments
02/15/22	1.650%	242	3,375.38	15,040.86	293,502.26	18,416.24
08/15/22		181		14,396.80	279,105.46	
02/15/23		184		14,476.74	264,628.72	
08/15/23		181		14,633.04	249,995.68	
02/15/24		184		14,718.87	235,276.81	
08/15/24		182		14,867.86	220,408.95	
02/15/25		184		14,969.98	205,438.97	
08/15/25		181		15,117.35	190,321.62	
02/15/26		184		15,215.23	175,106.40	
08/15/26		181		15,365.53	159,740.86	
02/15/27		184		15,469.59	144,271.27	
08/15/27		181		15,617.83	128,653.44	
02/15/28		184		15,728.17	112,925.26	
08/15/28		182		15,871.74	97,053.52	
02/15/29		184		15,993.22	81,060.30	
08/15/29		181		16,135.04	64,925.26	
02/15/30		184		16,258.25	48,667.01	
08/15/30		181		16,400.08	32,266.93	
02/15/31		184		16,529.90	15,737.03	
08/15/31		181		15,737.03	0.00	
				308,543.12		

COMMENTS:

Interest payments shown from February 16, 2021 to February 15, 2022 are computed at 1.65 percent. After February 15, 2021, interest rates will be adjusted to reflect the adjusted interest rate applied on the outstanding principal balance.

IMPORTANT: If payment is made by check, please send the enclosed amortization schedule(s) with check for proper credit. Please make sure that SpA Lockbox CM9695 is on both the check and envelope.

Please mail a copy of the amortization schedule with a check made payable to:

U.S. Bank Trust-SpA Lockbox CM9695 ATTN: Operations Center

1200 Energy Park Drive St. Paul, MN 55108 OR

Please wire funds to:

U.S. Bank N.A. (Minneapolis) ABA 091000022 FFC: U.S. Bank Trust N.A. Account # 180121167365

Wire Clearing Account # 47300023

ATTN: 50364256/996103DKO

INTERCAP: Lewis and Clark County

Leo J. Gallagher, County Attorney
Katie Jerstad, Deputy
Jeremy Gersovitz, Deputy
Ann Penner, Deputy
Fallon Stanton, Deputy
Charles Lane, Deputy
Nicho Hash, Deputy
Josh Nemeth, Deputy
Jacob Griffith, Deputy
John Nesbitt, Deputy
Rebekah Hall, Deputy
John Hall, Deputy
Karra Comstock, Deputy
Kevin Downs, Deputy



Lewis and Clark County Courthouse 228 Broadway Helena, MT 59601 Telephone 406-447-8221 Fax 406-447-8268

Lewis and Clark County COUNTY ATTORNEY OFFICE

OPINION OF BORROWER'S COUNSEL

June 18, 2021

Board of Investments of the State of Montana 2401 Colonial Drive, 3rd Floor P. O. Box 200126 Helena, MT 59620-0126

U.S. Bank National Association Corporate Trust Services PD-WA-T7CT 1420 Fifth Avenue, 7th Floor Seattle, WA 98101

Ladies and Gentlemen:

I have served as counsel to Lewis and Clark County (the "Borrower") in connection with its participation in the INTERCAP Program (the "Program") of the Board of Investments of the State of Montana (the "Board"). Terms used herein which are defined in the Loan Agreement, dated as of June 18, 2021 (the "Loan Agreement") between the Borrower and the Board shall have the meanings specified therein. The resolution of the Borrower authorizing its participation in the Program and the issuance of its Loan Agreement relating thereto is herein referred to as the Loan Agreement Resolution.

I have examined, among other things:

- the Borrower Act;
- ii) the Loan Agreement dated as of June 18, 2021 and executed by the Borrower;
 - iii) the Promissory Note (the "Note") dated as of June 18, 2021

and executed by the Borrower;

- iv) Resolution No. 2021 3 of the Borrower, dated 6-3-21 (the "Loan Agreement Resolution");
- v) the proceedings of the Borrower with respect to the due execution and delivery by the Borrower of the Loan Agreement and Note (the Program Documents), and such certificates and other documents relating to the Borrower, the Program Documents and the Loan Agreement Resolution of the Borrower, and have made such other examination of applicable Montana law and a review of the Borrower's actions with respect to applicable ordinances and resolutions as we have deemed necessary in giving this opinion.

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that:

- (a) The Borrower is a political subdivision duly organized and validly existing under the laws and Constitution of the State of Montana with full legal right, power and authority to enter into, execute and perform its obligations under the Program Documents and to carry out and effectuate the transactions contemplated thereunder.
- (b) The execution of the Loan Agreement and Promissory Note have been duly authorized and are valid, binding and enforceable against the Borrower in accordance with its terms.
- (c) The Loan Agreement Resolution of the Borrower has been duly adopted and is valid, binding and enforceable against the Borrower in accordance with its terms.
- (d) The Borrower has taken all action required to be taken by it to authorize the execution and delivery of and the performance of the obligations contained in the Program Documents; and such authorization is in full force and effect on the date hereof.
- (e) The Borrower has complied with all applicable competitive bidding requirements for the purchase, acquisition, and construction of the Project.
- (f) All environmental permits necessary for the construction and continued operation of the Project have been obtained.
- (g) No consent, approval, authorization, order, filing, registration, qualification, election or referendum, of or by any person, organization, court or governmental agency or public body whatsoever is required to be obtained by the Borrower in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of the Program Documents or the consummation of the other transactions effected or contemplated thereby.

- (h) The execution, delivery and performance of the Program Documents, and compliance with the provisions thereof will not conflict with or constitute a breach of, a violation of, or default under, the Constitution of the State of Montana, or any existing law, charter, judgment, ordinance, administrative regulation, decree, order or resolution of or relating to the Borrower and do not conflict with or result in a violation or breach of, or constitute a default under, any agreement, indenture, mortgage, lease or other instrument, to which the Borrower is a party or by which it is bound or to which it is subject.
- (i) The Program Documents executed by the Borrower, when delivered to the Board, will have been duly authorized and executed and will constitute validly issued and legally binding obligations of the Borrower according to their terms.

It is understood that the enforceability of the Program Documents may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization or other similar laws affecting the enforcement or creditors rights.

Sincerely,

Borrower Attorney

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATION

The undersigned Treasurer/Clerk and Recorder hereby certifies with respect to the Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement"), dated as of June 18, 2021, by and between Lewis and Clark County (the "Borrower") and the Board of Investments (the "Board") that:

1. The governing body of the Borrower has prepared its budget for the fiscal year 2021 and included in its budget an amount designated and sufficient to make the Loan Repayments (as defined in the "Loan Agreement") due in fiscal year 2021.

Dated this 18th day of June, 2021.

LEWIS AND CLARK COUNTY COUNTY

By Amy Reeves

Its Treasurer/Clerk and